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SR

N N phe original barracks building of thesSouth Florida

Military Institute was constructed in 189%. It was a two-
v story wooden structure with a flat roof and foundation oF
brick piers. At each end of the building was a projecting
two-story octagonal tower. The towers extended about two
feet above the roof of the building. In the center of the
barracks building was a similar three-story tower with an
opened recessed archway at its base. Each of the three
towers had @ single blind arch below the roofline. To the
rear of each end tower wings extended approximately thirty-
five feet beyond the central structure giving the building
a u-shaped appearance from the back. Thgre was a walkway
along the second floor rear of the barrgcks so that the
cadets could file out of their rooms and exit to the front
parade grounds through the central archway. The overall
impression presented by the building when viewed from the

front was that of a military fort. ’

, To _the north of the barracks was a_smaller two-story
faculty building of similar architecture with a two-story
octagonal tdwer at its north end. There was a covered
front porch to the south of the tower. This building is
still standing. '

The fenestration of both buildings was uniform with
rows of elongated double hung sash windows on each floor.
The buildings had decorative brackets supporting a thin
corngce.

The school ceased‘to_function,inﬂlgd% and the property
‘passed intc the Hands of Milton D. Wilson who removed.-the
‘v/iqgn;:alwtpwgerf‘the barracks and remodeled the interior
of the remaining north and south portions. What had been
the north section of the barracks, Mr. Wilson converted

intd\ﬁigjhpme, and it is now sometimes referred to as
"The Wilson House".

What had been the south section of the barracks, Mr.

~ Wilson converted into two apartments, one on each floor.

This building burned in 1944. The building which originally

served as the faculty living quarters was also used by the
Wilson family as a private residence.

The main structural change to the Wilson home, or
the converted north wing of the barracks, was the addition
of a front porch which extended around the north side of
the building forming a porte cochere. A balustrade was
placed on the roof of this structure.
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‘The Wilson House and nearby faculty residence

are in excellent condition structurally.

The

interiors are also in very good condition. The
exteriors are somewhat in need of painting but

otherwise show no serious defects.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The South Florida Military Institute of Bartow,
Florida was founded in 1894 by Major General Evander
McInverLaw, an experienced teacher and Confederate

“~veterah who, after General Hood was wounded, commanded
Hood's Division at Gettysburg and Chickamauga.

General Law moved to Bartow in 1893. The following
year he organized the South Florida Military Institute
patterning the program after The Citadel, Virginia
MiTitary Academy, and the United States Military Academy.
Early in 1895 a delegation of citizens headed by
General Law appealed to the State of Florida for support.
They secured an initial appropriation from the Legis-
lature for $6,400 and the school was placed under the
control of the State Board of Education. The appoint-
ment of a local Board of Trustees was also prescribed
by law. In the same year, 1895, the main three tower
barracks building was built, the north section of which
still stands. In 1903 the State Legislature changed
the name of the school to South Florida Military College
and granted it the authority to confer college degrees.

Also in the year 1903 an unusual event in the
history of the school occurred. General Law resigned
after a clash with the Board of Trustees and upon the
suggestion of a future Secretary of State of Florida,
Robert A. Gray of the Class of 1903, all but three
members of the senior class resigned in protest.
Finally, in 1927, the Florida Legislature authorized
the University of Florida to issue diplomas to the
members of this class who had resigned.

Under the Buckman Act of 1905 the South Florida
Military College was merged into the University of
Florida and ceased to function as a separate entity.

In 1909 the graduates of the Bartow college were
authorized by the State Legislature to receive diplomas
from the University of Florida.
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LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINATES

LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINATES

DEFINING A RECTANGLE LOCATING THE PRoPERTY |O DEFINING THE CENTER POINT OF A PROPERTY
R OF LESS THAN TEN ACRES
CORNER LATITUDE LONGITUDE LATITUDE LONGITUDE
Degrees Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Seconds Degrees Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Seconds
NW o ’ ” -] ’ n [o] ’ » o ’ ”
°
NE . o+ ||l 27 53 07 | 81 50 34
SE o ’ ” o ’ »
Sw (-] ’ » o ’ »

APPROXIMATE ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY:

Less than one acre

ILIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE: CODE COUNTY CODE
STATE: CODE COUNTY: CODE
STATE: CODE COUNTY: CODE
STATE: CODE COUNTY: CODE

NAME AND TITLE:

H. D. Rirkland

ORGANIZATION

Division of Archives, History & Records Mgt.

DATE

8/16/71

STREET AND NUMBER:

Department 6f State -

The Capitol

CITY OR TOWN:

Tallahas

STATE CODE

Florida

As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na-
tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law
89-665), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion

in the National Register and certify that it has been

evaluated according to the criteria and procedures set
forth by the National Park Service.
level of significance of this nomination is:

State [] Local (7]

The recommended

National

Na

Title

Date

I hereby certify that this property is included in the

National Register.

Chief, Office of Archeology and Hisfpric Preservation

%7{[ 72

Date

ATTEST:

Register

/7

GP O 901.087
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The college properties were put up for bid
and secured by W. B. Swearingen in 1906. He
subsequently turned them over to his law partner,
Milton D. Wilson of the Class of 1904. Mr. Wilson
removed thé central tower of the barracks bulldlng
‘and remodeled--the remaining north and south wings.
The south section was turned into two apartments
which subsequently burned and the Wilson family took
up residence in the now separate north section.
Mrs. Wilson, who is eighty-five, still lives in
the original house. The faculty building which
is just north of the Wilson home is also still
standing. It now belongs to the family of
Mrs. Isabelle Wilson Boswell, daughter of Mr.
and Mrs. Milton Wilson. The Boswell family lived
in this house until 1971 when it was rented to
another family.

The institution has a significant place in
the development of higher education in Florida
and warrants nomination on that basis.
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